ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE JUDI CI ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 15, 2010
1:32 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Hollis French, Chair

Senator Bill Welechowski, Vice Chair
Senat or Denni s Egan

Senat or John Coghi |

VEMBERS ABSENT
Senator Lesil MCuire
COWMM TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO 194
"An  Act relating to civil damages for certain alcoho
vi ol ations."

- HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BILL NO 222

"An Act relating to the crimes of harassnment, possession of
child pornography, and distribution of indecent nmaterial to a
mnor; relating to suspending inposition of sentence and
conditions of probation or parole for certain sex offenses;
relating to aggravating factors in sentencing; relating to
registration as a sex offender or child kidnapper; anending Rule
16, Alaska Rules of Crimnal Procedure; and providing for an
effective date.”

- HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BILL NO 252

"An Act relating to the crinme of failure to appear; relating to
arrest for violating certain conditions of release; relating to
rel ease before trial, before sentence, and pending appeal;
relating to material wtnesses; relating to tenporary release;
relating to release on a petition to revoke probation; relating
to the first appearance before a judicial officer after arrest;
relating to service of process for donestic violence protective
orders; making conform ng anmendnents; anmending Rules 5 and 41,
Al aska Rules of Crimnal Procedure, and Rules 206 and 603,
Al aska Rules of Appellate Procedure; and providing for an
effective date.”

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- February 15, 2010



PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SB 194
SHORT TITLE: C VIL DAMAGES FOR ALCOHOL VI OLATI ONS
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) MEYER

04/ 17/ 09 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS

04/ 17/ 09 (S) STA, JUD

01/ 28/ 10 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BELTZ 105 ( TSBI dg)

01/ 28/ 10 (S) Moved CSSB 194(STA) Qut of Committee

01/ 28/ 10 (S) M NUTE( STA)

01/ 29/ 10 (S) STA RPT CS 5DP NEW TI TLE

01/ 29/ 10 (S) DP:  MENARD, FRENCH, MEYER  PASKVAN,
KOOKESH

02/ 10/ 10 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

02/ 10/ 10 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 10/ 10 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

BILL: SB 222
SHORT TITLE: SEX OFFENSES; OFFENDER REG S.; SENTENCI NG
SPONSOR(s): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNCR

01/ 19/ 10 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 19/ 10 (S) JUD, FIN

01/ 25/ 10 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
01/ 25/ 10 (S) Heard & Hel d

01/ 25/ 10 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

W TNESS REG STER

O C. MADDEN, Director of Operations

Brown Jug, Inc.

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Provi ded supporting testinmony on SB 194.

SILVIA VILLAM DES, Director

Anchor age CHAAR

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 194.

ED O NEI LL, President

Anchor age Responsi bl e Beverage Retail ers Associ ati on ( ARBRA)
Anchor age, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 194.

JERRY MCCUTCHEQN, representing hinself

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 2- February 15, 2010



PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified that SB 194 was special interest
| egi sl ati on.

SENATOR KEVI N MEYER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Sponsor of SB 194.

CHRI STI NE MARASI GAN, St af f
to Senat or Kevin Meyer
Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, AK
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified that the CS for SB 194 corrects
cross references in statute.

Rl CK SVOBODNY, Deputy Attorney Ceneral

Al aska Departnent of Law

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided a sectional analysis to SB 222.

KATHRYN MONFREDA, Chi ef

Crimnal Records and ldentification Bureau

Di vision of Statew de Services

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions about the sex offender
registry as it relates to SB 222.

QUI NLAN STEI NER, Publ i c Def ender

Publ i ¢ Def ender Agency

Al aska Departnent of Adm nistration

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Hi ghlighted areas of concern in SB 222.

JEFFERY M TTMAN, Executive Director

ACLU of Al aska, said he believes that

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified that the conmttee questions
addressed many of the issues that the ACLU is concerned about in
SB 222.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1:32:10 PM

CHAIR HOLLIS FRENCH <called the Senate Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:32 p.m Senators Egan, Coghill

and French were present at the call to order. Senator
W el echowski arrived soon thereafter

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3- February 15, 2010



SB 194-Cl VI L DAMAGES FOR ALCOHOL VI OLATI ONS

1:32: 25 PM
CHAI R FRENCH announced the consideration of SB 194 and asked for
a notion to adopt the new commttee substitute (CS).

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI noved to adopt CS for SB 194, | abeled 26-
LS0895\S, as the working docunent. There being no objection,
version S was before the commttee.

O C. MADDEN, Director of Operations, Brown Jug, Inc., introduced
hi nsel f.

CHAIR FRENCH asked M. Madden how his business applies the
statutes pertaining to civil penalties for alcohol violations
and the affect they' ve had.

MR. MADDEN reported that the Brown Jug has been using the civi
penalty laws since 1998 to prevent underage drinking; they've
proven to be very effective. In 1998 the Mnicipality of
Anchorage enacted the laws and in 2001 they were enacted on the
state level. He explained that when an underage person is caught
trying to purchase al cohol he sends the mnor a |letter demandi ng
paynent. Wen he hears back, he offers sone alternatives. The
first option is to sinply pay the $1,000 civil fine. The second
option is to reduce the penalty to $300 if the mnor agrees to
conplete a two-day al cohol education class and presentations by
Mot hers Against Drunk Driving (MAAD) and Standing Together
Agai nst Rape (STAR). M. Madden said that he uses the $300 as a
bonus paynent to the enpl oyee who caught the mnor. This process
rewards enployees and gets the mnors and their famlies in
education and treatnent prograns, he said.

1:35:26 PM
CHAIR FRENCH asked if Brown Jug's vigilant approach mght be
driving sone underage buying to other stores.

MR. MADDEN replied he doesn't speak for other retailers, but it
does seem to be comon know edge anong kids that if you're
underage, Brown Jug is the last place you want to try to buy
al cohol .

SILVIA VILLAMDES, D rector, Anchorage CHAAR, stated that the
civil penalty process has been inportant to CHAAR nenbers. She
said that when Kkids wunder age 18 are caught trying to buy
al cohol their parents get involved, but it's nmore difficult to

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- February 15, 2010



engage the kids over age 18. They ignore the demand letters and
t hey nove around | eaving no forwardi ng address. She clai ned that
the law wunfairly punishes |icensees when mnors enter the
prem ses. She believes it should be the mnor who is penalized.
W do our best to go through training and licensing. "W don't
want to serve young kids," she enphasi zed.

1:38:27 PM
SENATOR COGHI LL asked what reasonable costs m ght be assessed in
addition to the civil penalty.

MS. VILLAM DES deferred to M. Madden

MR. MADDEN said he doesn't know if all attorney costs are
rei nbursed, but he does know that it's very time consunmng to
deal with the mnors, their famlies, and the agencies that
coordinate treatnent. Since 1998 Brown Jug has dealt w th about
2,100 kids. Most of the tine that's spent on these cases is up
front, before there's a suit or a judgnent so there's no
rei nbursenent for those costs. That's part of the reason that
increasing the penalty to $1,500 is a good idea.

SENATOR COGHI LL thanked him for clarifying that increasing the
civil penalty to $1,500 helps cover the cost of getting to a
settl enent.

ED O NEILL, President, Anchorage Responsible Beverage Retailers
Association (ARBRA), said he's also with Brown Jug and he
reiterates M. Mdden's testinony. He asked the conmittee to
keep in mnd that kids today have a lot of noney in their
pockets so it's easy for them to skirt the $1,000 penalty
without telling their parents. ARBRA is trying to inform
|icensees statewide so that they can take advantage of this
provi sion, he said.

1:42:52 PM
SENATOR COGHI LL asked how nmany cases go to court and how many
are settled out of court.

MR. O NEILL replied Anchorage CHAAR has negotiated 42 cases and
has 15 court cases pending. He noted that M. Mdden has been
the nost successful; he could teach other retailers to be
simlarly effective.

CHAI R FRENCH asked how many enforcenent actions are settled and
how many go through a court proceeding to finality.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- February 15, 2010



VR. MADDEN said Brown Jug has been very successful at
negotiating with mnors and their parents. Reducing the penalty
to $300 if the mnor agrees to the educational conponent has
proven effective and it doesn't bog down the courts. He noted
that he has given classes on how to do this to licensees in
Fai r banks, Nome, and Juneau. He woul d be happy to continue doing
that in the future.

SENATOR COGHILL said since nost of these cases are negotiated
rather than going to court, his concern is that increasing the
l[imt could inpose a barrier for people to defend thenselves in
court should they feel that need.

MR. MADDEN clarified that the only mnors they deal with are
those that have been caught and identified on the 1|icensed
prem ses. Under the law this is both a crimnal and a civil
violation. The process after they identify the mnor is to send
a letter demandi ng paynment under Alaska civil law. That step is
necessary in order to nove ahead with a civil action in court.
They have discussions with the mnor and make a determ nation
about whether or not to drop the case or to nove forward. \Wen a
case ends up in a small clains action, the first thing the court
does is to assign a nediator to come up with a solution. That's
why Brown Jug starts working on options once the mnor responds
to the demand letter

1:47: 30 PM
SENATOR COGHI LL asked if they call the troopers or police when
they identify someone who is using a fraudulent ID

MR. MADDEN said yes; it's very well established. Sone cases
don't warrant noving forward, but sonetines they' ve caught
mnors nore than once. "That's where having a $1,500 civil
penalty would be an effective tool," he said.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked what he thinks about the idea to
expand this provision to include a penalty for people who are
prohi bi ted from purchasi ng al cohol

MR. MADDEN replied that's already on the books. He added that
Representative Crawmford has a bill to increase the civil penalty
from$1,000 to $2,000 for persons with alcohol restricted |Ds.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if he would support that in this
bill.

MR. MADDEN replied he supports the idea.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- February 15, 2010



1:50: 00 PM

JERRY MCCUTCHEON, representing hinself, described SB 194 as
toothless legislation and a ruse for legislators to say that
they acted to protect the public. He claimed that this is
special legislation for Brown Jug because snaller retail ers have
neither the tinme nor the resources to take advantage of the | aw

CHAIR FRENCH cl osed public testinony and asked the sponsor to
descri be what the new Sections 5 and 6 do.

SENATOR KEVIN MEYER, sponsor of SB 194, said his staff would
explain the changes. Responding to the previous testinony, he
expl ai ned that CHAAR undertakes the process for snmall businesses
that don't have the tinme or resources to do so. He wouldn't
object if the conmttee wants to include in this bill the
i ncreased penalty for persons trying to buy alcohol when they
have an al cohol -restricted ID.

1:53:41 PM

CHRI STINE MARASI GAN, Staff to Senator Kevin Myer, told the
conmittee that the changes in the CS were recomended by
Legislative Legal Services to correct <cross references in
statute.

CHAIR FRENCH asked the committee what it wanted to do about
adding the provisions of Representative Crawford's bill to this
one.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI offered to bring the appropriate | anguage.

1:55:25 PM
CHAI R FRENCH held SB 194 in commttee awaiting an anendnent.

SB 222- SEX OFFENSES; OFFENDER REG S.; SENTENCI NG

1:55: 47 PM
CHAI R FRENCH announced the consideration of SB 222. He asked M.
Svobodny to continue the sectional analysis he started at the
previous hearing, beginning with Section 8. He noted that
bookstores have contacted him to explain how this provision
woul d wor k.

RI CK SVOBODNY, Deputy Attorney GCeneral, Alaska Departnment of
Law, said Section 8 expands a present provision that prohibits
electronic distribution of indecent material to mnors to
prohibit any distribution of indecent material to mnors. It's

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- February 15, 2010



nore than just through the Internet. Wth respect to the
concerns articulated about determning a person's age, he said
that the state has to prove two elenents - that the person
knowi ngly distributed and that they were reckless as to the age
of the wvictim |It's obvious if a person is 12 if they're
standing at the counter versus mailing sonmething to an address,
he sai d.

1:58:43 PM
CHAIR FRENCH asked if he thinks that the prohibited material
descri bed on page 4, lines 18-25 would be pictures or words.

MR. SVOBCODNY replied the itenms that are listed cone from the
statute prohibiting child exploitation. AS 11.41.455 requires
sonmebody to create a picture or a live sex show for sonebody
under age 16. He noted that the Cimnal Code Revision
Comm ssion recomended including these things under the child
exploitation statute and it's been the | aw since 1980.

CHAIR FRENCH clarified that it is pictures or novies or live
shows, not words witten in a book.

MR. SVOBODNY agr eed.

CHAIR FRENCH noted that the statute has the word "depicts" and
asked if it would be clearer if it were limted to the sorts of
things just discussed with respect to unlawful exploitation of a
m nor .

MR. SVOBODNY replied that was the initial intent and he believes
it would be clearer.

CHAIR FRENCH said they'd take the |anguage and neke it as clear
as possible. It may not elimnate First Anendnent and booksell er
concerns, but it's a good start.

2:01: 45 PM

MR. SVOBODNY said he doesn't believe that since 1980 there's
been a prosecution in this state for distributing witten
mat eri al under the provisions in Title 11.41 or 11.61

SENATOR FRENCH asked his reaction to the suggestion to put the
MIller test |language into the bill.

MR. SVOBODNY replied his concern is that it could be very

difficult to neet the additional elenents that are added to the
of f ense.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 8- February 15, 2010



SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI  conmented that prosecutorial discretion
could account for the fact that nobody has been prosecuted under
this statute since 1980. He shares the concerns about protecting
First Amendnent rights and prefers to err on the side of being
nmore explicit, not |ess.

CHAIR FRENCH said the commttee would look at it once the nore
descriptive | anguage is inserted.

SENATOR COGHI LL asked if the MIler |anguage is in the packet.

CHAI R FRENCH rel ayed that the |anguage says, "that the materia
| acks serious literary, artistic, political, or scientific value
and that depicts the follow ng actual or sinulated conduct."”

SENATOR COGHI LL opined that renoving the word "electronic" from
Section 8 made it clearer and inserting the MIller |[|anguage
would make it less so. "Every tinme you add a word to statute
that's one nore word you get to argue over what the neaning is."

CHAI R FRENCH agr eed.

MR. SVOBODNY clarified that since 1980 when that Ilist was
enacted there hasn't been a prosecution of a book distributor.
He further explained that the section is intended to deal wth
the situation of a person who is groomng a child by show ng
them sexually explicit material in person as opposed to it over
t he Internet.

2:06: 46 PM
SENATOR COGHI LL said he understands that but renmoving the word
"el ectronic" broadens the question.

CHAI R FRENCH agreed it's far broader.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked i f a booksel | er "knowi ngly
distributes” if they put a picture book on the shelf that they
believe has value under the MIler test and they know that Kkids
go there.

MR, SVOBODNY said the cul pable state is to knowi ngly distribute,
which is to nove from one person to another. A different catch-
all statute says there's an additional culpable nental state
regarding a child's age and that's reckless. The bookseller
would have to be reckless in that the person that they're
distributing to is wunder 16 years of age. He added that

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -9- February 15, 2010



recklessly is "a gross deviation from the standard of conduct
that a reasonabl e person woul d use under the circunstance.”

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if bookstores wll have to start
carding customers that buy certain books to nake sure they're
over a certain age.

MR, SVOBCDNY replied it's up to a jury to determ ne whether the
conduct is a gross deviation from the standard of conduct. He
can't say what juries would decide is reasonable for sonebody
who is distributing pictures of people under age 18 who are
engaged in sexual activity or any of the other things in the
list. It's not sinmply a list of children that are unclothed;
it's specific acts, he said.

CHAIR FRENCH reported that the House judiciary conmttee added
the M1l er |anguage.

2:09: 38 PM

MR. SVOBODNY said Sections 9 and 10 are conform ng anendnments to
strike the word "electronic.” Section 11 adds the crimes of
human  trafficking, di stribution or possession  of child

por nography, and distribution of indecent material to mnors to
the group of offenses for which a person may not receive a
suspended inposition sentence. This is when a court nakes a
determination to hold off on inposing a sentence on the
condition that the person does certain things. At the end of the
suspended inposition the person may apply to the court for a
certificate of discharge saying they have conpleted the
suspended i nposition of sentence.

CHAIR FRENCH noted that the new statutory references are AS
11.41.360 - 11.41.370 and AS 11.61.125 - 11.61.128.

2:12: 00 PM

MR. SVOBODNY said that Section 12 describes the conditions of
probation that a court may inpose. DCOL believes that the court
al ready has the authority, but this specifically gives the court
discretion to order a person to give their Internet address to
his or her probation officer, to prohibit a person from
establishing Internet sites that are directed toward children,
and to restrict a person from having contact with children under
age 18.

CHAI R FRENCH observed that many of these conditions are already

scattered throughout the statutes. He asked if there's anything
new or if this sinply puts the court powers in one place.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -10- February 15, 2010



MR. SVOBODNY replied he believes the court already has this
authority when there's a nexus between the offender's conduct
and the condition that the court has inposed, but it's spelled
out - as is the condition about communicating with children
under age [16]. This section also adds information about a
probation officer obtaining email addresses and requiring the PO
to give the information to the Al aska State Troopers.

MR. SVOBODNY said Section 13 anends the aggravating factor at
sentencing to allow the court to increase a sentence above the
sentencing range if the jury finds that the victim was
particularly vul nerable. Being under the influence of alcohol or
drugs are added factors that mght nake a person particularly
vul nerable. He noted that Dr. Andre Rosay with the UAA Justice
Center reported to this commttee the staggering anount of
sexual abuse of a mnor cases when the child was under the
i nfluence of alcohol. That was the genesis of this aggravating
factor, he said.

2:17: 04 PM

Section 14 adds two new aggravating factors in crinmes against a
person in AS 11.41. The first allows the court to increase a
sentence above the sentencing range if the defendant was dating
or had engaged in a sexual relationship with the victim This
goes to the vulnerability of the victinse to those crines. The
second allows the court to increase the sentence for sexual
abuse of a mnor in the second degree when the defendant is age
18 or older. He noted that DOL recommended that the House amend
its bill to a 10-year age difference. The notion is that soneone
who is 13 is nore likely to be taken advantage of by sonebody
who is 25 than by sonebody who is 17.

CHAI R FRENCH asked what ages are specified in AS 11.41.436(a)(2)
making it a crime for sonmebody to have sex with another.

MR. SVOBODNY replied a person 16 years of age or older commts
sexual abuse of a mnor if they engage in sexual contact with a
person who is under 13 years of age.

MR. SVOBODNY continued to say that Section 15 adds a new
provision to Alaska's sex offender registration law. A person
who is required to register in another state or jurisdiction
woul d have to register if they cane to this state even if Al aska
does not have a matching sex-based crine.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -11- February 15, 2010



He elaborated that Alaska has a tiered system under which a

person is required to register for either 15 years or for life
depending on the type of offense and if they are a repeat
of f ender . QO her states have <chosen to wuse a risk-based

assessnent under which a person could be required to register
even though they had not been convicted of a sex-based crinme. In
M nnesota, for exanple, a person who entered a hone with the
intent to rape sonmebody nmay be convicted of burglary, but they
woul d still go through the assessnent for a determ nation on how
long they had to register as a sex offender. If that person were
to nove to Alaska, they would not currently be required to
regi ster because they had been convicted of burglary, not a sex
of fense. Likew se, nmaking bodily contact with a mnor with the
intention of arousing one's sexual desires is a crine of |ewd
and lascivious acts on a mnor in nany states, but not Al aska.

MR. SVOBODNY highlighted that according to testinony in another
committee, the Alaska State Troopers receive between 300 and 500
calls per nonth from sex offenders in other states asking about
sex offender registration in this state. Approximately 150 of
those calls are from people asking if they would be required to
register if they were to nove to Alaska. This new provision is a
way of saying they would need to register.

2:23:40 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if there are equal protection issues
with a law |like this because a certain act that's a crine in
another state mght not be a crine at all in this state.

MR. SVOBODNY replied he doesn't know of any because it's a
regulatory rather than crimnal mtter when soneone conmes to
Al aska after having been convicted in another state. He added
that he recognizes that the U S. Suprene Court and the Al aska
Suprene Court differed when they talked about the expos facto
nature of this law. The U S. Suprenme Court found that the Al aska
law was regulatory while the Al aska Supreme Court said it's a
puni shmrent. He opined that when you're talking about people
comng to this state it seens that it's regulatory. A person who
commits a felony crine in another state would be unable to cone
to Al aska and possess a handgun because they would be a felon in
possessi on of a handgun, even though Alaska m ght not have an
anal ogous felony crine.

CHAI R FRENCH cited an exanple from an ACLU neno. Sonmeone who was
convicted in another state of having sex with a 17-year-old
woul d be required to register if they came to Al aska even though
the age of consent in this state is 16. Under this provision if

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -12- February 15, 2010



that person cones to Alaska they would be required to register
as a sex offender for 15 years for an act that Al aska doesn't
recogni ze as a crine.

MR. SVOBODNY agreed. He added that the age of consent in
California, which may or may not be a risk assessnent state, is
17 so soneone who is required to register there wuldn't escape
that requirenent by noving to Al aska.

2:26:53 PM

CHAIR FRENCH said the risk assessnent is intriguing because it
inplies that soneone in law enforcenment has probed into a
person's background to conme up with a reason to nmake them
register. Presumably it's a good reason that's designed to
protect the public. He asked if there's nore to being a tiered
state than that a person is classified by their conviction on
certain crines.

MR. SVOBODNY replied tiered states are nore general as to the
conduct that would require a person to register as a sex
of f ender than risk-assessnent st at es. Cenerally a risk
assessnent hearing cones before an adm nistrative |aw judge. The
state argues why it thinks the person's conduct warrants the
requirenent to register as a sex offender for a certain period
of time. The offender nakes the opposite argument and then an
adm nistrative decision is made. He noted the federal governnent
is trying to drive all states to have a simlar system He
understands that the risk-assessnent system was considered when
the Sex Ofender Registration Act first passed but given
Al aska' s geography, the decision was to go to a tiered system

CHAIR FRENCH stated that before the next hearing he wants to
| ook at which states have the risk-assessnent system and |earn
how it works. Certainly we don't want people to nove here just
because they wouldn't be required to register, but it's
troubling to think that someone could be put in jail for not
registering for an act that isn't a crime in this state, he
sai d.

2:30:10 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked how the current system works.

MR. SVOBODNY explained that if the out of state person has
committed an offense that has simlar elenents to an Al aska
of f ense, an admnistrative determnation is nade by the
Department of Public Safety as to whether the person is Tier 1
and has to register for 15 years or Tier 2 and has to register

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -13- February 15, 2010



of life. There is the ability for an adm nistrative appeal of
that decision to appear in superior court and argue that the
adm nistrative decision was wong. The problem is when it's a
clear sex offense in other states, but the elenents are not
anal ogous to any law in this state. For exanple, in the mlitary
a person who commts a rape nay be court-martialed for conduct
unbecomng the military. The person commtted a rape but they
woul dn't be captured under current |aw as sonebody who should be
required to register a sex offender.

2:32: 07 PM

CHAIR FRENCH called a point of order to ask if a court-marti al
for rape would require the person to register as a sex offender
in that state. He further asked if there is a federal sex
of fender registry.

MR. SVOBODNY said yes and he believes that Title 18 includes
other jurisdictions - territories and the federal government so
if there's a mlitary conviction on El nendorf, for exanple, the
person may evade the Alaska sex offender regi stration
requirenents.

CHAlI R FRENCH observed that the commttee needs nore infornmation
on that.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if there is a list of the nmjor sex
offenses that people commt in other states for which they
aren't required to register when they cone to Alaska. | don't
object to increasing the registry but | don't want to punish
people for doing things that we've nade a conscious policy to
say are okay, he said.

2:34:13 PM
CHAIR FRENCH asked M. Monfreda what issue cones up nobst
frequently when people from other states call to ask about

Al aska's sex offender registration requirenents.

KATHRYN MONFREDA, Chief, Crimnal Records and Identification
Bureau, Dy vision of Statewide Services, Departnment of Public
Safety (DPS), said her duties include managi ng the sex offender
registry. She confirmed that her office receives about 150 calls
per nonth from offenders, nostly inquiring about whether or not
they nust register. Sone of the calls cone from juveniles
because unlike Al aska, several states require juveniles to
regi ster. She agreed with M. Svobodny that it's challenging to
make a determ nation about registering when soneone has been
convicted of a mlitary crinme. Qther questions relate to whether

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -14- February 15, 2010



someone mnust register if the crinme for which they were convicted
isn'"t listed as a sex offense in Alaska. Electronic distribution
and online enticenent are exanples of convictions in other
states that haven't required registration here, she said.

CHAI R FRENCH revi ewed the new subparagraph (D) in Section 15 and
observed that this would make her |ife easier.

M5. MONFREDA said it's not that sinple because her office would
still need to neke determnations about the Ilength of
regi stration; about whether someone had been exenpted from
regi stering because of risk assessnents, which Al aska doesn't
have; and about whether other states have a provision to
| engthen registration time for nonconpliance. Another issue
relates to tracking conpliance if a person is convicted of a
crime in one state and later noves to another state before
moving to Alaska. This information can be difficult to gather
because sone state registries aren't interested in tracking an
of fender after they nove fromthe state.

2:38:48 PM

MR. SVOBODNY pointed out that a problemw th the proposed change
is that it doesn't talk about tiers. DOL has sonme |anguage to
address that om ssion, he said.

CHAIR FRENCH said the conmittee |ooks forward to receiving the
amendment .

MR. SVOBODNY continued to say that the new provision in Section
16 is part of the federal law, which requires that child
por nography that has been collected nmust remain in the custody
of the law enforcenent agency and the prosecuting attorney.
Di scovery will not be limted but the material may not be copied
by the defense or anybody else. The idea is to make it |ess
likely that the material would be distributed or that it would
get back into the hands of the offender, both of which would
revictimze the child.

CHAIR FRENCH nentioned a nmeno that cites a Wshington State
child pornography conviction that was overturned because the
defense was not able to view the evidence except at a state
facility. He hasn't read the case.

MR SVOBODNY said he hasn't read the case either but he was

troubled that the court was reported to have said that [view ng
t he evidence] could have been acconplished with better firewalls

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 15- February 15, 2010



because that sounds |like the material would go out over the
| nt er net agai n.

CHAIR FRENCH said he's flagging that as a concern, but he
recalls that M. Steiner wasn't particularly worried about the
provision. He did highlight a concern about the expense of
nmoving experts to and from the location where the material is
hel d.

QUI NLAN STEI NER, Public Defender, Public Defender Agency, Al aska
Departnent of Adm nistration, agreed that the expense of noving
experts would definitely be a concern. The way that the statute
is interpreted and the way that access to the evidence is
granted could also raise constitutional concerns, he said. It
woul d definitely raise a concern if someone from public safety
is required to be in the room when the defense council, the
experts, and the defendant are discussing the material. The
statute doesn't speak to that specifically.

CHAI R FRENCH asked if his concern centers on the extent to which
custody and control is taken.

MR. STEINER said yes because this rule change <could be
interpreted in a wide variety of ways.

2:44: 24 PM

JEFFERY M TTMAN, Executive Director, ACLU of Alaska, said he
believes that the commttee questions addressed many of the
i ssues that the ACLU is concerned about. He noted that the ACLU
does support including a MIller test to avoid potential First
Amendnent issues. The other issue relates to the potential
constitutional problens with the right to a defense. Cearly
having the material in the control and custody of the state and
the prosecution is a significant inpedinment to defense issues

he said. He cited the Mirtagh case and noted that the state
suprenme court wultimately ruled in favor of the defendant's
rights to a full defense. He urged the commttee to |ook
carefully at the language to nore appropriately balance the
i ssues.

2:46: 24 PM
CHAI R FRENCH cl osed public testinony and announced he would hold
SB 222 in committee.

2:46: 49 PM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -16- February 15, 2010



There being no further business to cone before the commttee,
Chair French adjourned the Senate Judiciary Standing Conmmttee
nmeeting at 2:46 p.m

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -17- February 15, 2010



